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Renville County led the way in memorializing events connected with the 1862 Sioux Uprising. Much of this effort 

was steered by the group, Minnesota Valley Historical Society founded in 1895. The Old Settlers Society, the 

Minnesota Historical Society and the Renville County Historical Society also dedicated memorial monuments. 

The Renville County Pioneers Association also was instrumental in having monuments erected to mark the 

graves of several slain in the Indian outbreak, those of Mrs. Stephen Henderson and her daughters, Eugene 

White, Radnor Earle and also the Schwandt monument. 

The Redwood Ferry historic plaque, erected by the Minnesota Historical Society, is on Highway 19 
east of Morton. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inscription: “On a summer day in 1862 the Redwood Ferry landing on the Minnesota River below this point was 

the scene of the first attack against military troops in one of America's most tragic Indians wars. Early in the 

morning of August 18, 1862, a large part of Dakota (Sioux) warriors enraged by delayed annuity payments and 

near-starvation conditions on their reservation, attacked the nearby Lower Sioux Agency. Surviving agency 

employees crossed the river on the Redwood ferry and fled to Fort Ridgely some 13 miles downstream.  

Discounting warnings of the Indian's strength and determination, the fort's commandant, John S. Marsh, set out 

toward the agency with interpreter Peter Quinn and 46 soldiers of the Fifth Minnesota Infantry. They found the 

Dakota waiting in ambush at the ferry. In the ensuing fight, Quinn and 23 soldiers were killed and Marsh was 

drowned while trying to escape by swimming across the river. The remaining men eventually made their way 

back to Fort Ridgely which was itself attacked on August 20 and 22. The war in the Minnesota River Valley 

claimed the lives of at least 450 whites and an unknown number of Dakota before it came to an end at Camp 

Release on September 26, 1862.”  
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The Redwood Ferryman Monument and the Battle of Redwood Ferry Monument 
The monument shown on the left, the Redwood Ferryman monument, was erected in memory of the bravery of 
the ferry operator at this site. He saved many whites by giving warning as the ambush began. The inscription 
reads:  “In memory of CHARLIE MARTEL whose bravery as ferryman at this point saved many settlers in the 
massacre of 1862.” The monument on the right is the Battle of Redwood Ferry Monument dedicated to the 
soldiers killed at the Redwood Ferry. The inscription reads:  “At and near this spot CAPT. MARSH and 24 men 
were ambushed and killed by Sioux Indians Aug. 18, 1862 also Peter Quinn U. S. Interpreter.” See the inset on P. 
120for details on the commissioning of the Martell marker. These monuments are located on private property 
on the north side of the Minnesota River across from the Lower Sioux Agency and inaccessible to the public.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Battle of Birch Coulee Marker and the Birch Coulee Battlefield 
The Battle of Birch Coulee historic marker is located north of Morton on Highway 71 and this is the inscription:  

"On the prairie a half mile east of this point, a party of about 160 troops was attacked by Sioux at dawn Sept. 2, 

1862. During the battle, the forces were surrounded for thirty hours, losing over a third of its number in killed or 

wounded.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

From "The Elusive Hero of Redwood Ferry" by 
Joseph Connors in "Minnesota History 
Magazine", 34:237" Another controversy 
centering about the name and identity of Peter 
Martell developed in 1919, when the Minnesota 
legislature passed a law providing for the 
erection of monuments to victims of the Sioux 
Outbreak. The law specified that, because he 
"saved the lives of many citizens" during the 
massacre, a marker inscribed to Peter Martell 
should be erected at the ferry site. The plan was 
opposed by Satterlee and Julius Schmahl, then 
secretary of state. The latter believed that the 
marker should bear the name of Hubert Millier.”  
Charlie or Peter Martell or Hubert Millier?  
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The battleground itself is located three miles north of Morton, at the junction of Renville County Hwys. 2 and 18,  

one mile east of U.S. Highway 71. The site features a self-guided tour of the battleground focusing on the 

perspectives of Joseph Anderson, a captain in the U.S. Army, and Wamditanka (Big Eagle), a Mdewakanton 

soldier. The Battle of Birch Coulee was one of the hardest fought battles of the Dakota War as the U.S. soldiers 

were kept under siege for thirty-six hours before help arrived from Fort Ridgely.   

Left marker found on west side of battlefield. Marker on right is found on the north side of the Birch Coulee Park 

and Battlefield. There is a third marker indicating Gray Bird’s position during the battle but it was not located.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 
 

Left marker Inscription: “600 
feet south in the ravine the 
Whites were attacked by the 
Sioux Indians under Mah-Ka-To 
Sept. 2, 1862.” Right marker 
inscription, “West of crest of 
hill and 755 feet east was one 
of the principal points of attack 
by the Sioux Indians under Big 
Eagle Sept. 23, 1862.”   
 

The text on the Gray Bird Monument: 

“In the then tall grass in the swale about 300 feet 

north a body of Sioux Indians under Gray Bird 

attacked the whites. Behind the hill 400 feet to the 

east was the last point of attack by the Indians 

whence they were driven by the relief forces into the 

river bottom to the south. September 3, 1862.” 

 

Monument at Camp Hope 

There is an additional monument erected by the 

Minnesota Valley Historical Society, the Monument 

at Camp Pope located in Redwood County on the 

south side of the Minnesota River. The inscription 

reads:  “Between this point and the river on the 

north and east was located Camp Pope from which 

Gen. Sibley marched against the hostile Sioux Indians 

– June 16, 1863”. 
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Middle Creek Brave Settler Monument 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           Photo courtesy of Don Heinrich Tolzmann 
 
The monument is located on County Road 21, .4 mile south of the Middle Creek United Methodist Church, in 
section 35 of Flora Township, Renville County, near where many were killed during the U.S. – Dakota War of 
1862. The monument's inscription reads: "IN MEMORY OF THE BRAVE SETTLERS WHO FELL AT THIS POINT IN 
THE MASSACRE OF 1862." 
  
Thirty-nine settlers were killed at Middle Creek on Monday, August 18. They include Gottlieb and Justina 
Boelter,  John Boelter and Amelia, Mrs. Michael, Justine, Pauline, Wilhelmina Boelter and Mrs. Michael’s  two 
unborn children, Gottlieb and Wilhelmina Busse, and Augusta, Bertha and Caroline Busse, John and August 
Frass, Johann and Catherine Kochendorfer, and Sarah, John Lettou and son, Gottlieb Mannweiler, Eusebius Reyff 
II, Margreth, Annie, and Benjamin Reyff, John and Justine Roessler, Gustav and Albert, Frederick Roessler, 
William and Louise Schmidt, Minnie and  two other Schmidt children, Johann and Christina Schwandt, Frederick 
and Christian,  Rev. Christian Louis Seder, and John and Carolina Walz.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The statute that allowed the building of this: 
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/?view=sessi
on&year=1919&type=0 
1919 Minnesota Legislature, Chapter 464, Sec 
49, Page 579:Sec. 49. For amount to be used 
by a commissioner to be appointed by the 
secretary of state, and whose expenses shall 
not exceed the sum of $25.00, for the erection 
of a monument in Flora township, Renville 
county, to the memory of the settlers who 
were massacred by the Sioux Indians and for 
the erection of a monument to the memory of 
Peter Martelle, who, during said massacre, 
saved the lives of many citizens, the sites for 
said monuments to be furnished free to the 
state, and provided that the commissioner, 
who shall be a resident of Renville county, 
shall personally contract or and supervise the 
work of the erection of the monuments 
and shall furnish to the secretary of state an 
itemized statement of all necessary expenses 

incurred in the work, the same to be paid upon 
the approval of the secretary of state. $300.00 

 
 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/?view=session&year=1919&type=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/?view=session&year=1919&type=0
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Middle Creek United Methodist Church 

The church is located on County Road 21, south of the intersection of #50 in Flora Township. For church history, 

see the Flora Township Chapter.    
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The Schwandt Monument 

 The Schwandt Monument was erected in 1915, memorializing the six Schwandt family members and one friend 

who died in the 1862 conflict. Two children survived. Their injured young son, August, crawled away. Their 

daughter, Mary Schwandt, who was taken captive, was not home at the time the Dakota attacked. She was 

working at the Joseph Reynolds School on the west side of the Redwood River, south of the Minnesota River. 

Mary published her remembrances in 1864. The monument is located on Renville County Road 15, south of 

Sacred Heart. Here is the inscription: "Erected by the State of Minnesota 1915 In Memory of Martyrs for 

Civilization, Johann Schwandt, Christina Schwandt and Their Children Fredrik and Christian, John Walz, Karolina 

Schwandt Walz & John Frass. Murdered by Sioux Indians August 18, 1862."  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
               

 

 Photo submitted by Don Heinrich Tolzmann 

The article on the next two pages appeared in  
‘Wild West’ in April, 2008 and was written by 
Don Heinrich Tolzmann and used with his  
permission. 

 

  

 

Dr. Warren Upham, archaeologist of the 
Minnesota State Historical Society, said: "In the 
dedication of this monument telling of the awful 
tragedy of race hatred and massacre which 
befell a German family of pioneers here fifty-
three years ago, let us not forget the bright 
flower of a life-long friendship which blossomed 
above their graves, gladdening the life of a 
rescued survivor of that family and the life of 
the kind Dakota woman, Snahnah, her rescuer. 
The Historical Society of this state, in its 
published volumes, preserves to all coming time 
the narrations of Mary Emilia Schwandt Schmidt 
and Snahnah, children of parents and of races 
who met in mortal conflict, the one a captive 
German girl and the other a bereaved Dakota 
mother. They loved each other with affection 
that may be likened to that of David and 
Jonathan three thousand years ago. Can we 
learn something from this -- does it even shed 
forth a ray of hope that when the present 
direful world war shall be ended with treaties of 
peace, it may be the beginning of trust and 
helpfulness, of mutual respect and friendship, 
between the now warring nations?”  

 

‘Till the war drum throbs no longer, 
and the battle flags are furled 

In the parliament of men 
And the federation of the world.’ 
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The Henderson, Wedge and White Monument and the Radnor Earle Monument 

 

            

       
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Henderson monument honors Mrs. S.R. 
(Clarissa) Henderson, and her two daughters 
(one named Lydia), and Jehiel Wedge, Eugene 
White and F. Thies. It was erected in 1907 by 
Renville County Pioneers in memory of five 
victims who were killed in the Dakota War of 
1862 and F. Thies who died years later. It was 
originally located 1 1/2 miles southwest of its 
current site, on the Henry Homeier farm in 
Beaver Falls Township where they were killed 
and buried. It was moved to its present location 
in 1981 by the Renville County Historical Society 
to the Morton Pioneer Monuments Roadside 
Parking Area. The marker is located north of the 
midpoint of the curved wayside rest area on the 
western side of Hwy. 71 about 1.4 miles north 
of County Road 2. The site is located about four 
miles north of the town of Morton.  
 

Nearby the Earle monument honors Radnor Earle, 
the 15-year-old son of Jonathan and Amanda, 
who had a gun but no ammunition, so he loaded 
it with pebbles. At one point in the flight, Radnor 
stopped to fire on the Dakota, thus enabling his 
father to escape. Radnor was killed after shooting 
at the Dakota. His mother and sisters were taken 
captive and his father and brothers managed to 
escape. After erecting a monument to their fallen 
son, the family moved to LeMars, Iowa. Radnor’s 
monument was later moved next to his father’s 
grave in LeMars, but his remains were left where 
he was buried. A monument was then erected at 
this wayside stop north of Morton, ½ mile from 
where he is buried. An adjoining marker indicates 
"This monument was originally erected 1 1/4 
miles S.W. of this site. It was erected here in 
1981. Renville County Historical Society.” 
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The Loyal Indian Monument 
In 1899, the Minnesota Valley Historical Society erected an approximately 50-foot high granite monument 
strictly to honor those faithful Indians who were loyal to the whites during the uprising. There were three 
criteria used in selecting names:  1.The subjects were to be full-blooded Indians. 
2. There were to have been truly loyal to the whites throughout the entire period of the outbreak, from its 
inception, on the 18th of August, 1862, until the close of that year. 3. They were to have actually, by personal 
effort and in a practical manner, saved the life of at least one white person. 
Snana’s name was added after she died.   
 
There were only six Dakota who qualified but there were many others, including mixed-bloods, who helped out 
with escape plans, warning the settlers and doing special acts of kindness showed to some prisoners at Camp 
Release. This monument is located on the east side of Morton, high on the bluff that overlooks the Minnesota 
River Valley.      

 
     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The words ‘Patriotism, Courage, Fidelity, and Humanity’ are on the four sides of the monument. 

 

 
     
 
 

 

Inscription: Erected A.D. 1899 by the 
Minnesota Valley Historical Society to 
commemorate the brave, faithful and 
humane conduct of the loyal Indians who 
saved the lives of the white people and 
were true to their obligations throughout 
the Sioux War in Minnesota in 1862 and 
especially to honor the services of those 
named.   

 

 

 

Other Day - Am-pa-tu To-ki-cha (known as John Other 
Day) 
Paul - Mah-za-koo-te-manne (known as Iron that 
Shoots Walking) 
 Lorenzo Lawrence - To-wan-e-ta-ton (known as Face 
of the Village)  
Simon - A-nah-wang-manne (Known as Walks 
Alongside)  
Mary Crooks - Mah-kah-ta He-i-ya-win (Traveling on 
the Ground) 
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This photo shows the Loyal Indian and the Battle of Birch Coulee Monuments located in Morton, 
MN, ca. 1902 from the Renville County Historical Society collections, donation by Gladys Gooderum. 

 

 
Battle of Birch Coulee Monument   

    This monument was erected by the State of Minnesota in 1894 and is located on the east side of 
Morton, high on the bluff which overlooks the Minnesota River Valley. The monument is a 52-foot 
granite shaft that honors the memory of those soldiers who were wounded or died in the Battle of 
Birch Coulee. The inscriptions were difficult to photograph.  
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The battle took place September 2 and 3, 1862, and the fighting continued both days, but was much more 
intense at the beginning. Joseph R. Brown's burying party were camped at the battlefield, located about 17 
miles from Fort Ridgely. The early morning assault led by Mah-Ka-to left 23 who died, 13 at the battle site, 
and about 50 wounded, while the Dakota suffered but two casualties. The next afternoon, or 36 hours after the 
siege began, help arrived. The detachment was relieved by Col. Sibley's soldiers from Fort Ridgely.  

           

 

  
 
 
 

Another perspective of both monuments from a postcard from the 
Renville County Historical Society Collections. 

Front, Battle of Birch Coulee Monument, back, Loyal Indian Monument. 
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Fort Ridgely 
Most of Fort Ridgely was located in Nicollet County, but part of the military reservation was located in Renville 
County. More on the fort is found in the Fort Ridgely chapter.         

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The inscription reads: “Fort Ridgely, Minnesota's third military post, was established in 1853 to defend the 

frontier and watch over the Sioux who had been moved to the Minnesota Valley two years earlier. When it 

was completed in 1855, the fort consisted of a large parade ground surrounded by stone and wood 

buildings. From 1853-1862 the post was garrisoned first by regular U.S. army troops and then, after the 

outbreak of the Civil War, by volunteer regiments. When the Sioux Uprising began in 1862, Fort Ridgely 

assumed great importance as the only military post in the valley and a vital defense point against the Indians. 

Hundreds of settlers flocked here for safety only to encounter two Sioux offensives; these attacks were 

repelled mainly by the skillful use of artillery by the fort's defenders. After the withdrawal of the military in 

1872, most of the buildings deteriorated or were converted to others uses by settlers. In 1896 the state of 

Minnesota erected a monument commemorating the battles fought near the old parade ground. In 1911 the 

legislature created Fort Ridgely Memorial State Park. Archaeological excavations in 1933 uncovered the 

foundations of eight building sites, all now marked. The commissary, the only stone building from the old fort 

to be preserved, has been restored for use as a visitor's center. Created by the Minnesota Historical Society 

1971.”       
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Photos by Dan Traun | dantraun.com 

  
Above, left, the Battle of Birch Coulee Monument and right, the Loyal Indian Monument. 

The three panels that follow were done in collaboration with Family and Friends of Dakota 
Uprising Victims, the Renville County Historical Society, and the Minnesota River Valley 
Scenic Byways group. They were commissioned and funded by descendants of Renville 
County Settlers. Source: Mary P. McConnell (2013). 
 

http://dantraun.com/
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